1	IN THE SUPREME COURT	OF THE ST	ATE OF NEVADA
2			
3	* * * *	* * * * * * *	
4	WILLIAM P. CASTILLO,	No. 56176	Electronically Filed Feb 14 2011 10:55 a.m.
5	Petitioner,	1,0. 501,0	Tracie K. Lindeman
6	vs.		
7	E.K. McDANIEL, Warden, Ely State		
8	Prison, CATHERINE CORTEZ MASTO, Attorney General for Nevada,		
9	Respondents.		
10	APPELLANT'S	OPENING F	BRIEF
11	Appeal from Order	r Denying Pet	tition for
12	Writ of Habeas Cor	pus (Post-Co	nviction)
13	Eighth Judicial Distr	ict Court, Cla	ark County
14			
15			
16		Fe	RANNY A. FORSMAN ederal Public Defender
17		A	ARY A. TAYLOR ssistant Federal Public Defender
18		4]	evada Bar No. 11031C 11 East Bonneville Ave, Ste. 250

1	<u>Crump v. Warden</u> , 113 Nev. 293, 934 P.2d 247 (1997) passim
2	<u>D'Agostino v. State</u> , 107 Nev. 1001, 823 P.2d 283 (1991)
3	<u>Daniel v. Nevada</u> , 119 Nev. 498, 78 P.3d 890 (2003)
4	<u>Davies v. State</u> , 95 Nev. 553, 598 P.2d 636 (1979)
5	<u>Dickerson v. State</u> , 114 Nev. 1084, 967 P.2d 1132 (1998)
6	<u>Diomampo v. State</u> , 124 Nev.414, 185 P.3d 1031 (2008)
7	<u>Flanagan v. State</u> , 109 Nev. 50, 846 P.2d 1053 (1993)
8	<u>Flanagan v. State</u> , 112 Nev. 1409, 930 P.2d 691 (1996)
9	Flores v. State, 121 Nev. 706, 120 P.3d 1170 (2005)
10	Floyd v. State, 118 Nev. 156, 42 P.3d 249 (2002) passim
11	Ford v. Warden, 111 Nev. 872, 901 P.2d 123 (1995)
12	<u>Frutiger v. State</u> , 111 Nev. 1385, 907 P.2d 158 (1995)
13	<u>Funderburk v. State</u> , 124 Nev, 212 P.3d 337 (2009)
14	Gallego v. State, 117 Nev. 348, 23 P.3d 227 (2001)
15	Garner v. State, 116 Nev. 770, 6 P.3d 1013 (2000)
16	Geary v. State, 114 Nev. 100, 952 P.2d 431 (1998)
17	Gonzalez v. State, 118 Nev. 590, 53 P.3d 901 (2002)
18	<u>Guinn v. Legislature</u> , 119 Nev. 277, 71 P.3d 1269 (2003)
19	Gunter v. State, 95 Nev. 319, 592 P.2d 708 (1979)
20	<u>Hallmark v. Eldridge</u> , 124 Nev, 189 P.3d 646 (2008) passim
21	<u>Hardison v. State</u> , 84 Nev. 125, 437 P.2d 868 (1968)
22	<u>Harkins v. State</u> , 2010 WL 3385767 (2010)
23	<u>Harris v. Warden</u> , 114 Nev. 956, 964 P.2d 785 (1998)
24	<u>Hathaway v. State</u> , 71 P.3d 503 (2003)
25	Hern v. State, 97 Nev. 529, 635 P.2d 278 (1981)
26	<u>Hernandez v. State</u> , 117 Nev. 463, 24 P.3d 767 (2001)
27	Hernandez v. State, 118 Nev. 513, 50 P.3d 1100 (2002)
28	Hill v. State, 955 S.W.2d 96 (Tex.Cr.App. 1997)

1	Hill v. Warden, 114 Nev. 169, 953 P.2d 1077 (1998)
2	Homick v. State, 108 Nev. 127, 835 P.2d 600 (1992)
3	Howard v. State, 106 Nev. 713, 800 P.2d 175 (1990) passim
4	<u>In re Tartar</u> , 52 Cal. 2d 250, 339 P.2d 553 (1959)
5	In re Termination of Parental Rights as to N.J., 116 Nev. 790, 8 P.3d 126 (2000) 103
6	<u>Jackson v. Warden</u> , 91 Nev. 430, 537 P.2d 473 (1975)
7	<u>Johnson v. State</u> , 118 Nev. 787, 59 P.3d 450 passim
8	<u>Johnson v. State</u> , 122 Nev. 1344, 148 P.3d 767 (2006)
9	<u>Kaczmarek v. State</u> , 120 Nev. 314, 91 P.3d 16 (2004)
10	<u>Kazalyn v. State</u> , 108 Nev. 67, 825 P.2d 578 (1992) passim
11	<u>Kirksey v. State</u> , 112 Nev. 980, 923 P.2d 1102 (1996)
12	<u>Krewson v. Warden</u> , 96 Nev. 886, 620 P.2d 859 (1980)
13	<u>Lane v. State</u> , 110 Nev. 1156, 881 P.2d 1358 (1994)
14	<u>Latterner v. Latterner</u> , 51 Nev. 285, 274 P. 194 (1929)
15	<u>Leslie v. Warden</u> , 118 Nev. 773, 59 P.3d 440 (2002) passim
16	Lord v. State, 107 Nev. 28, 806 P.2d 548 (1991)
17	Maggard v. State, 399 So. 2d 973 (Fla. 1981)
18	<u>Mazzan v. Warden</u> , 112 Nev. 838, 921 P.2d 920 (1996)
19	<u>McConnell v. State</u> , 120 Nev. 1043, 102 P.3d 606 (2004) passim
20	McConnell v. State, 212 P.3d 307 (Nev. 2009)
21	McGuire v. State, 100 Nev. 153, 677 P.2d 1060 (1986) passim
22	McKenna v. State, 114 Nev. 1044, 968 P.2d 739 (1999)
23	McNelton v. State, 111 Nev. 900, 900 P.2d 934 (1995)
24	Meek v. State, 112 Nev. 1288, 930 P.2d 1104 (1996)
25	Middleton v. State, 114 Nev. 1089, 968 P.2d 296 (1998)
26	Milligan v. State, 101 Nev. 627, 708 P.2d 289 (1985)
27	Nester v. State, 75 Nev. 41, 334 P.2d 524 (1959)
28	Nevada Power Co. v. Haggerty, 115, Nev. 353, 989 P.2d 870 (1999) 109

Nevius v. Warden, 114 Nev. 664, 960 P.2d 805 (1998)
<u>Nika v. State</u> , 124 Nev. 1272, 198 P.3d 839 (2008) passim
Parker v. State, 109 Nev. 383, 849 P.2d 1062 (1993)
Pellegrini v. State, 104 Nev. 625, 764 P.2d 484 (1988)
<u>Pellegrini v. State</u> , 117 Nev. 860, 34 P.3d 519 (2001) passim
People v. Molineux, 168 N.Y. 264, 61 N.E. 286 (1901)
Pertgen v. State, 110 Nev. 554, 875 P.2d 361 (1994)
Powell v. State, 108 Nev. 700, 838 P.2d 927 (1992)
Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163 (2002)
Robbins v. State, 106 Nev. 611, 798 P.2d 558 (1990)
Rodriguez v. State, 2009 WL 3711919 (2009)
Rose v. State, 123 Nev. 194, 163 P.3d 408 (2007)
Schwartzmiller v. Gardner, 752 P.2d 1341 (9th Cir. 1984)
Sheriff v. Middleton, 112 Nev. 956, 921 P.2d 282 (1996)
<u>Sherman v. State</u> , 114 Nev. 998, 965 P.2d 903 (1998) passim
Slade v. Farmers Insurance Exchange, 5 P.3d 280 (Colo. 2000)
Smith v. State, 110 Nev. 1094, 881 P.2d 649 (1994)
Somes v. State, 187 P.3d 152 (Nev. 2008)
State v. Bennett, 119 Nev. 589, 81 P.3d 1 (2003)
State v. District Court (Riker), 121 Nev.225, 112 P.3d 1070 (2005)
<u>State v. Haberstroh</u> , 119 Nev. 173, 69 P.3d 676 (2003) passim
<u>State v. Jackson</u> , 94 Ariz. 117, 382 P.2d 229 (Ariz. 1963)
<u>State v. Payne</u> , 791 S.W.2d 10 (1990) passim
<u>State v. Rodriguez</u> , 31 Nev. 342, 102 P. 863 (1909)
State v. Wong Fun, 22 Nev. 336, 40 P. 95 (1895)
Stocks v. Warden, 86 Nev. 758, 476 P.2d 469 (1970)
<u>Summers v. State</u> , 122 Nev. 1326, 148 P.3d 778 (2006) passim
<u>Utter v. Casey</u> , 81 Nev. 268, 401 P.2d 684 (1965)

1	<u>Valdez v. State</u> , 124 Nev. 1172, 196 P.3d 465 (2008) Passim
2	<u>Valerio v. State</u> , 112 Nev. 383, 915 P.2d 874 (1996)
3	<u>Warden v. Lischko</u> , 90 Nev. 221, 523 P.2d 6 (1974)
4	Wesley v. State, 112 Nev. 503, 916 P.2d 793 (1996)
5	<u>Wiggins v. State</u> , 724 A.2d 1 (Md. 1999)
6	Young v. State, 103 Nev. 233, 737 P.2d 512 (1987) passim
7	Zgombic v. State, 106 Nev. 571, 798 P.2d 548 (1990) passim
8	DOCKETED CASES
9	Bennett v. State, No. 38934
10	<u>Doleman v. State</u> , No. 33424
11	<u>Farmer v. State</u> , No. 29120
12	<u>Feazell v. State</u> , No. 37789
13	<u>Hardison v.State</u> , No. 24195
14	<u>Jones v. McDaniel</u> , No. 39091
15	Moran v. State, No. 28188
16	Nevius v. Warden, No. 29027
17	<u>Randle v. State</u> , No. 33677
18	<u>Rider v. State</u> , No. 20925
19	<u>Riley v. State</u> , No. 33750
20	<u>Robinson v. Ignacio</u> , No. 02-17298
21	Rogers v. Warden, No. 36137
22	<u>Sechrest v. State</u> , No. 29170
23	<u>Smith v. State</u> , No. 20959
24	<u>State v. Randle</u> , No. C121817
25	<u>Stevens v. State</u> , No. 24138
26	<u>Wilson v. State</u> , No. 29802
27	<u>Ybarra v. Warden</u> , No. 32762
28	FEDERAL STATUTES

1	21 U.S.C. §848(q)
2	42 U.S.C. § 1983
3	18 U.S.C. § 3006A & §3599
4	18 U.S.C. § 3599(e)
5	U.S. Const. amend VI
6	U.S. Const. amend. VIII
7	U.S. Const. amends. VIII, XIV
8	U.S. Const. amends. VI, VIII, XIV
9	STATE STATUTES
10	1995 Nev. Stat., ch. 455 § 1, at 1431
11	Nev. Const. Art. 6 §§ 3, 5
12	Nev. Const. Art. 6, § 4
13	Nev. Const. art. I, § 6, 8(5)
14	NRS 34.726 Passim
15	NRS 34.800
16	NRS 34.810
17	NRS 34.820
18	NRS 34.830
19	NRS 48.035
20	NRS 48.045
21	NRS 50.275
22	NRS 104.1201
23	NRS 175.552
24	NRS 175.554
25	NRS 175.556
26	NRS 176.355
27	NRS 193.165
28	NRS 200.010

1	NRS 200.033 Passim
2	NRS 200.035
3	NRS 202.375
4	NRS 233.030
5	MISCELLANEOUS
6	1 Geo. III c.23; 1 W. Holdsworth, <u>History of English Law</u> 195
7	1 W. Blackstone, Commentaries on the Laws of England 258 (1765)
8	ABA Guidelines for the Appointement and Performance of Defense Counsel in Death Penalty Cases (rev. ed. 2003) in 31 Hofstra L. Rev. 913 (2003)
10	American Psychiatric Association, <u>Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental</u> <u>Disorders</u> , 130
11	Bright, Political Attacks on the Judiciary: Can Justice be Done Amid Efforts to Intimidate and Remove Judges from Office for Unpopular Decisions?, 72 N.Y.U. L. Rev. 308, 312-314, 316-326, 329 (1997)
13	<u>Christopher Seeds, Strategery's Refuge</u> , 99 J. Crim. L. & Criminology 987 (2009) 9
14	Johnson and Urbis, Judicial Selection in Texas: A Gathering Storm?, 23 Tex. Tech L. Rev. 525, 555 (1992)
15 16	<u>Nevada Lawyer,</u> 17 (April 2005)
17	Note, Disqualifying Elected Judges from Cases Involving Campaign Contributors, 40 Stan. L. Rev. 449, 478-483 (1988)
18 19	Note, Safeguarding the Litigant's Right to a Fair and Impartial Forum: A Due Process Approach to Improprieties Arising from Judicial Campaign Contributions from Lawyers, 86 Mich. L. Rev. 382, 399-400, 407-408 (1987)
20	Progressive Leadership Alliance of Nevada, <u>The Supreme Jackpot II: A Study of Campaign Contributions to Nevada Supreme Court Candidates</u> 2004 at 13 (September 2005)
22	Rider v. State, No. 20925
23	Sadock, Benjamin James, Sadock, Virginia Alcott, <u>Kaplan & Sadocks Synopsis of Psychiatry</u> , 676 (9th ed. 2003)
24 25	Smith, An Independent Judiciary: The Colonial Background, 124 U. Pa. L. Rev. 1104, 1112-1152 (1976)
26	<u>State v. DePew</u> , 528 N.Ed.2d 542, 558 (Ohio 1985)
27 28	Supplementary Guidelines for the Mitigation Function of Defense Teams in Death Penalty Cases (2008) in 36 Hofstra L. Rev. 677 (2008)

1	Supreme Court of Nevada, Annual Report of the Nevada Judiciary 2 (2002) 96
2	W. Stubbs, <u>Select Charters</u> 531 (5th ed. 1884)
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

I. STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION A) B) C)

The Basis for the Supreme Court's Appellate Jurisdiction

This Court has jurisdiction over this appeal from a final order dismissing a post-conviction petition for relief under NRS 34.830.

Filing Dates Establishing the Timeliness of this Appeal

Mr. Castillo filed the underlying Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus on September 18, 2009 which challenged his conviction and sentence. 1 AA 184. On May 12, 2010, the court below entered and Order which denied Mr. Castillo's claims. 21 AA 5127. Mr. Castillo timely filed a Notice of Appeal on June 4, 2010. 21 AA 5138.

Assertion That the Appeal Is from a Final Order or Judgment.

The court below entered an order dismissing Mr. Castillo's petition for writ of habeas corpus. Mr. Castillo hereby appeals the order of the court below.

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 1 II. Throughout these proceedings, Mr. Castillo was indigent. The issues in his 3 state habeas petition related to the fairness of his trial and the effectiveness of counsel 4 appointed to represent him. Mr. Castillo raises the following issues: Will Nevada Execute a Defendant Who had "A Mitigation Case That 5 Α. Bears No Relation to the Few Naked Pleas for Mercy Actually Put Before the Jury," But Which His Attorneys Never Discovered? 6 7 B. Will Nevada Execute Mr. Castillo Even Though, under Current Law, His Mitigating Circumstances Outweigh the Aggravating 8 Circumstances? 9 C. Will Due Process Allow Nevada to Execute Mr. Castillo Based Upon Evidence of His Beliefs or Associations, Protected by the First 10 Amendment? 11 D. Will Gamesmanship Rule the Day? Must the Jury Independently Find That Mr. Castillo Acted Deliberately Ε. 12 under Nevada Law and Polk v. Sandoval, 503 F.3d 903 (9th Cir. 2007)? 13 F. Will Nevada Execute Mr. Castillo When the Jury's Verdict Was Based, in Part, upon Prejudicial, Inflammatory, Irrelevant, Tenuous and 14 Impalpable Evidence? 15 G. Does Mr. Castillo's Sentence Violate the Eighth Amendment Because the State Presented, as Aggravating Evidence, Acts Mr. Castillo 16 Allegedly Committed as a Juvenile? 17 Η. Death an Excessive Sanction for Mr. Castillo's Unique Is 18 Circumstances? Did Definition of Deadly Weapon Render the Murder Conviction 19 I. Unconstitutional? 20 J. Did the Instructions Lower the Burden of Proof by Inaccurately Defining Reasonable Doubt? 21 K. Will Nevada Permit a Death Sentence Based upon a Presentation of 22 Juvenile Records by a Witness with No Knowledge of Their Truthfulness or Reliability? 23 24 Will Nevada Execute Mr. Castillo Though the Tenure of Every Judge L. Who Heard His Case Was Dependent on Popular Election? 25 M. Will Nevada Execute Mr. Castillo When the Nevada Lethal Injection Protocol Constitutes Cruel and Unusual Punishment? 26 27 N. Will Procedural Default Trump a Fundamentally Fair Trial? 28 Does the Cumulative Effect of All These Errors Justify Relief? 0.

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Mr. Castillo is in the custody of the State of Nevada at Ely State Prison in Ely, Nevada, pursuant to a First Degree Murder conviction and death sentence.

A Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus was filed on September 18, 2009, challenging Mr. Castillo's conviction and sentence. 1 AA 184. On May 12, 2010, the court below entered and order which denied relief on each of Mr. Castillo's claims. 21 AA 5127. Mr. Castillo hereby appeals the order of the court below.

IV. STATEMENT OF FACTS

2.1

The victim, Isabelle Berndt, contracted for the installation of a roof over the 1995 Thanksgiving holiday. 15 AA 3608-3609. Mr. Castillo and others were hired to assist with installing the roof by Harry Kumma, a roofer employed by Dean Roofing Company. 15 AA 3651-3656. While working at the victim's home, Mr. Castillo found a key and stated that he would later return. TT 8/29/96 A.M. at 84.

Early morning, on December 17, 1995, smoke was observed coming from the victim's home. 15 AA 3667. Attempts were made to enter the home but, due to the fire and smoke, they were futile. The victim was later found in her bed.

Ben Hoge, an arson investigator, determined the heaviest smoke and fire damage was in the living room. 15 AA 3717. The fire was started in the living room and in the victim's bedroom; it was not accidental. 15 AA 3718-3719, 3728. Hoge concluded the fire was started with accelerant. 15 AA 3731. A bottle of lighter fluid was observed near the kitchen. 15 AA 3736.

Dr. Robert Bucklin concluded the victim suffered multiple crushing-type injuries, with lacerations to her head, crushing injuries of her jaw, and a fracture of her jaw.² 16 AA 3796-3800. Bucklin believed the injuries all occurred within the same general time period. 16 AA 3805. He concluded the victim died from an intra-cranial hemorrhage which resulted from blunt force trauma to her face and head.16 AA 3802. The injuries were consistent with being hit with a crow bar or a tire iron. 16 AA 3803.

A search of the home revealed that dresser drawers were open, closet doors were open and the contents of the bedroom appeared displaced. A jewelry box was open. A pillow, which partially covered the victim's face, matched a pillow in another room. 16 AA 3797, 3808-3812. The victim's daughter stated her mother owned a unique silverware

Fireman Cliff Mitchell examined the home using a dog trained to locate petroleum accelerates. The dog "alerted" in the living room and a crime lab verified that samples were positive for a petroleum product. 16 AA 3756-3770.

The victim suffered no injuries from fire or smoke. 16 AA 3804.

Mr. Castillo offered to sell Charles McDonald a silverware set. 16 AA 3950-3951. When McDonald stated he did not have the money, Mr. Castillo offered to accept payments. 16 AA 3953.

set which was missing. 15 AA 3620. The victim's daughter further testified that other items were missing, including a video cassette recorder, a number of knitted Christmas booties and eight \$50.00 United States Savings Bonds. 15 AA 3623; 3638-3639.

Tammy Jo Bryant, Mr. Castillo's girlfriend, testified they shared an apartment with Michelle Platou. 16 AA 3836-3837. Platou owned an automobile. 16 AA 3839. After six o'clock in the evening on December 16, Mr. Castillo and Platou left and did not return until three o'clock the following morning. 16 AA 3841. At that time, Mr. Castillo and Platou had a video cassette recorder, a box of silverware, and a bag of knitted booties. 16 AA 3842-3843. Shortly thereafter Mr. Castillo and Platou left again. 16 AA 3844.

The next morning Bryant learned that Mr. Castillo and Platou broke into a home. They heard a person, who they believed to be a man, snoring loudly. 16 AA 3861. Bryant learned that, when Platou bumped a wall, they panicked and Mr. Castillo hit the victim with a tire iron from Platou's vehicle. 16 AA 3846-3847. The second time Mr. Castillo and Platou left, they returned to the home to set it afire; because Platou believed she left fingerprints in the victim's home. 16 AA 3848. Bryant described Mr. Castillo as nervous and upset—he felt guilty over the events. 16 AA 3860-3862.

Kirk Rasmussen also worked on the victm's roof. 16 AA 3899-3900. Mr. Castillo rode with Rasmussen to work. 16 AA 3895. On December 18, Mr. Castillo was quiet and had a "weird look." 16 AA 3904. He told Rasmussen that he murdered an 86 year old lady. 16 AA 3905-3908. Mr. Castillo stated that he thought the victim was a man. 16 AA 3909-3910. Mr. Castillo went to the victim's home to steal property in order to obtain money. 16 AA 3911. On the following morning, Mr. Castillo again spoke of the murder and a television news report. 16 AA 3918. That afternoon Rasmussen observed the victim's burnt home and went to police. 16 AA 3920.

///

Although police obtained a search warrant for Mr. Castillo's apartment, he consented to the search. 16 AA 3849; 16 AA 3965, 3986. Mr. Castillo was cooperative and pointed things out to police. 16 AA 3859. Silverware, a video cassette recorder and knitted booties were recovered. 16 AA 3849; 16 AA 3965. Police seized a bottle of lighter fluid and a notebook with notations about the value of a "VCR," camera and silverware. 16 AA 3852-3854.

Mr. Castillo was arrested and provided two tape recorded statements. 17 AA 4015-4018. In his second statement, Mr. Castillo admitted that he committed the offense. 17 AA 4021-4024.

V. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The court below should have reversed Mr. Castillo's conviction and sentence.

Mr. Castillo appeals to this Court to correct the errors of the court below, to recognize the meritorious claims and to reverse both his conviction and sentence.

In Claim A, Mr. Castillo contends that his representation at trial, and in his initial state post-conviction habeas proceedings, failed to adhere to the professional norms in existence at the time of his trial and post-conviction proceedings. Had an adequate investigation been conducted, available mitigation evidence been presented, and an adequate record maintained, at least one juror would have found Mr. Castillo guilty of a lesser offense or sentence.

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