1	IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA			
2				
3				
4		Electronically Filed Jun 03 2011 04:13 p.m.		
5	WILLIAM P. CASTILLO,) Case No. 5617 Tracie K. Lindeman		
6	Appellant,) Clerk of Supreme Court		
7	v.			
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,			
9	Respondent.	_ }		
10				
11	RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF			
12	Appeal From Order Denying Petition : Eighth Judicial Dis	for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) trict Court, Clark County		
13	g			
14	GARY A. TAYLOR Assistant Federal Public Defender	DAVID ROGER Clark County District Attorney Nevada Bar #002781		
15	Nevada Bar #11031C 411 East Bonneville Ave., Ste. 250	Nevada Bar #002781 Regional Justice Center 200 Lewis Avenue

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

- ___

IV DEFENDANT'S CLAIMS ARE BARRED BY THE DOCTRINE OF LAW OF THE CASE

When an issue has already been decided on the merits by this Court, its ruling is law of the case, and the issue will not be revisited. "The law of a first appeal is law of the case on all subsequent appeals in which the facts are substantially the same." Hall v. State, 91 Nev. 314, 315, 535 P.2d 797, 798 (1975) (quoting Walker v. State, 85 Nev. 337, 343, 455 P.2d 34, 38 (1969)). "The doctrine of the law of the case cannot be avoided by a more detailed and precisely focused argument subsequently made after reflection upon the previous proceedings." Hall, 91 Nev. at 316, 535 P.2d at 799. Under the law of the case doctrine, issues previously decided on direct appeal may not be reargued in a habeas petition. Pellegrini v. State, 117 Nev. 860, 34 P.3d 519 (2001) (citing McNelton v. State, 115 Nev. 396, 414-15, 990 P.2d 1263, 1275 (1999)). The doctrine, however, is not absolute, and the Supreme Court has the discretion to revisit the wisdom of its legal conclusions if warranted. Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. 1066, 1074, 146 P.3d 265, 271 (2006). Even where the law of the case may be revisited or reconsidered, Defendant still has the burden of demonstrating good cause and prejudice to overcome any procedurally defaulted claims. NRS 34.726; 34.810.

As discussed below, many claims raised by Defendant in the instant petition were raised on appeal and/or in his original petition. These claims have been addressed by this Court and found to be without merit. Accordingly, this Court's ruling on these claims is the law of the case and they should not be revisited. Hall v. State, 91 Nev. 315, 315, 535 P.2d 797, 798 (1975).

V DEFENDANT'S PETITION WAS PROPERLY DISMISSED BY THE DISTRICT COURT

Defendant spends over one hundred pages arguing the merits of each individual claim and sub-claim. However, because Defendant's claims are procedurally barred, the State will not address them on the merits. Only if this court finds that a particular claim is not procedurally barred due to a showing of good cause and prejudice will such an examination

5

6

4

9

8

10

11 12

13

14

15 16

17 18

19

20 21

22 23

24

25

26

27 28 be warranted. As to any claims where the procedural bars have been overcome, an evidentiary hearing is only proper on those claims not belied by the record which, if true, would entitle Defendant to relief.

Regarding Defendant's ineffective assistance of counsel claims, the district court held:

Allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel at trial and on appeal were capable of being raised in the first post-conviction proceedings and do not constitute good cause for filing of a second petition. Likewise, any errors of first post-conviction counsel Chris Oram occurred seven to ten years ago between 2000 and 2003 and do not provide good cause for the entire length of delay. This court finds that no alleged error of first post-conviction counsel between 2000 and 2003 can account for the subsequent six year delay in filing the instant petition in 2009.

XXI AA 5128. As discussed in this section and section VI, below, the district court did not err in finding Defendant's claims to be procedurally barred without good cause and prejudice shown to excuse the procedural bars.

Inadequate Investigation and Miscellaneous Arguments. Α.

This exact claim of inadequate investigation has been previously raised in Defendant's first post-conviction petition. III AA 646-652. The State contends that Defendant's claim has previously been rejected by this Court (III AA 673) and is precluded from consideration based on the doctrine of law of the case. Moreover, Defendant cannot avoid application of the doctrine of law of the case simply because he now provides a more detailed and precisely focused argument subsequently made after reflection upon the previous proceedings. Hall, 91 Nev. at 316, 535 P.2d at 799.

To the extent that Defendant presents a rehashing of his prior arguments that appear to this Court as a new argument in support of this claim, Defendant has failed to allege any impediment or obstacle from asserting the arguments he now alleges in this claim. In fact, he previously presented many of these precise arguments. Accordingly, consideration of any additional arguments in support of this claim, if any exist, is barred pursuant to NRS 34.810. NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2); Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994),

10 11

12

13 14

15

16

17

18

19 20

21

22

23

24

25 26

27

28

disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999); Mitchell v. State, 149 P.3d 33 (2006).

Defendant also argued his counsel was ineffective for failing to object to the testimony of two police officers concerning statements of other victims, failing to adequately prepare defense witnesses, and allowing the trial judge broad discretion to excuse prospective jurors. These appear to be new claims not previously raised in Defendant's direct appeal or first petition. As this is a new or different ground for relief it constitutes an abuse of the writ and should not be reviewed. NRS 34.810(2). This issue is also time-barred under NRS 34.726 and subject to laches under NRS 34.800. Furthermore, Defendant has failed to allege any facts or circumstances constituting good cause for failure to previously assert these new arguments in Defendant's direct appeal or first petition.

B. McConnell Claim.

The district court found that Defendant's McConnell claims were time-barred because he delayed five years after McConnell was decided and three years after Bejarano. XX AA 5129. The court went on to find that review of this claim was not warranted under the fundamental miscarriage of justice doctrine because it was not an allegation of new evidence, but concerned an instructional error. Id.

This is a new claim not previously raised in Defendant's direct appeal or first petition. As this is a new or different ground for relief it constitutes an abuse of the writ and should not be reviewed. NRS 34.810(2). This issue is also time-barred under NRS 34.726 and subject to laches under NRS 34.800. Furthermore, Defendant has failed to allege any facts or circumstances constituting good cause for failure to previously assert these new arguments in Defendant's direct appeal or his first petition. As such, the district court did not err in finding this claim procedurally barred.

C. Admission of Evidence of Beliefs or Associations in Violation of First Amendment.

This is a new claim not previously raised in Defendant's direct appeal or first petition. As this is a new or different ground for relief it constitutes an abuse of the writ and should

not be reviewed. NRS 34.810(2). This issue is also time-barred under NRS 34.726 and subject to laches under NRS 34.800. Furthermore, Defendant has failed to allege any facts or circumstances constituting good cause for failure to previously assert these new arguments in Defendant's direct appeal or his first petition.

D. Prosecutorial Misconduct.

1. Testimony Concerning Defendant's "Other Case."

The issue of this testimony has been previously raised in Defendant's direct appeal. Castillo, 114 Nev. at 279, 956 P.2d at 108. The State contends that Defendant's claim has previously been rejected by this Court and is precluded from consideration based on the doctrine of law of the case. Moreover, Defendant cannot avoid application of the doctrine of law of the case simply because he now provides a more detailed and precisely focused argument subsequently made after reflection upon the previous proceedings. Hall, 91 Nev. at 316, 535 P.2d at 799.

To the extent that Defendant presents a rehashing of his prior arguments that appear to this Court as a new argument in support of this claim, Defendant has failed to allege any impediment or obstacle from asserting the arguments he now alleges in this claim. In fact, he previously presented these precise arguments on appeal. Accordingly, consideration of any additional arguments in support of this claim, if any exist, is barred pursuant to NRS 34.810. NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2); Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994), disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999); Mitchell v. State, 149 P.3d 33 (2006).

Should this Court determine that this is a new or different ground for relief it constitutes an abuse of the writ and should not be reviewed. NRS 34.810(2). This issue is also time-barred under NRS 34.726 and subject to laches under NRS 34.800. Furthermore, Defendant has failed to allege any facts or circumstances constituting good cause for failure to previously assert these new arguments in Defendant's direct appeal or his first petition.

Prosecutor's Emphasis of Defendant's Need to Pay an Attorney During Closing Arguments.

Defendant also claims that the prosecutor's argument during closing that Defendant was facing financial difficulties due to his need to pay an attorney constituted misconduct. The State contends that, for the reasons set forth in Section V, D, 1, above, this claim is precluded by the doctrine of law of the case. Should this Court determine that this is a new or different ground for relief it constitutes an abuse of the writ and should not be reviewed. NRS 34.810(2). This issue is also time-barred under NRS 34.726 and subject to laches under NRS 34.800. Furthermore, Defendant has failed to allege any facts or circumstances constituting good cause for failure to previously assert these new arguments in Defendant's direct appeal or his first petition.

3. Prosecutor's Arguments Concerning Mitigating Factors Not Raised by Defendant.

This is a new claim not previously raised in Defendant's direct appeal or first petition. As this is a new or different ground for relief it constitutes an abuse of the writ and should not be reviewed. NRS 34.810(2). This issue is also time-barred under NRS 34.726 and subject to laches under NRS 34.800. Furthermore, Defendant has failed to allege any facts or circumstances constituting good cause for failure to previously assert these new arguments in Defendant's direct appeal or his first petition.

<u>4.</u> <u>Arguments Concerning Future Victims.</u>

This claim was previously raised in both Defendant's Direct Appeal and First Post-Conviction Petition. II AA 461-463; III AA 630-636. This Court found it to be unworthy of relief in both instances. <u>Castillo</u>, at 281, 956 P.2d at 110; III AA 672. Since Defendant's claim has previously been rejected by this Court, it is precluded from consideration based on the doctrine of law of the case. Moreover, Defendant cannot avoid application of the doctrine of law of the case simply because he now provides a more detailed and precisely focused argument subsequently made after reflection upon the previous proceedings. <u>Hall</u>, 91 Nev. at 316, 535 P.2d at 799.

To the extent that Defendant presents a rehashing of his prior arguments that appear to this Court as a new argument in support of this claim, Defendant has failed to allege any impediment or obstacle from asserting the arguments he now alleges in this claim. In fact, he previously presented these precise arguments on appeal. Accordingly, consideration of any additional arguments in support of this claim, if any exist, is barred pursuant to NRS 34.810. NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2); Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994), disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999); Mitchell v. State, 149 P.3d 33 (2006).

Should this Court determine that this is a new or different ground for relief it constitutes an abuse of the writ and should not be reviewed. NRS 34.810(2). This issue is also time-barred under NRS 34.726 and subject to laches under NRS 34.800. Furthermore, Defendant has failed to allege any facts or circumstances constituting good cause for failure to previously assert these new arguments in Defendant's direct appeal or his first petition.

5. Arguments Concerning the Possibility of Defendant's Rehabilitation.

This is a new claim not previously raised in Defendant's direct appeal or first petition. As this is a new or different ground for relief it constitutes an abuse of the writ and should not be reviewed. NRS 34.810(2). This issue is also time-barred under NRS 34.726 and subject to laches under NRS 34.800. Furthermore, Defendant has failed to allege any facts or circumstances constituting good cause for failure to previously assert these new arguments in Defendant's direct appeal or his first petition.

E. The Use of the Kazalyn Instruction.

The district court found that Defendant was not entitled to the application of <u>Byford</u>, and that Defendant's argument concerning <u>Polk</u> did not provide him with good cause since he waited two years after that decision to file his petition. XX AA 5129-530. It also found that <u>Polk</u> did not address the retroactivity of <u>Byford</u> and <u>Nika</u> remains the current law that it is not retroactive. <u>Id</u>.

This is a new claim not previously raised in Defendant's direct appeal or first petition. As this is a new or different ground for relief it constitutes an abuse of the writ and

should not be reviewed. NRS 34.810(2). This issue is also time-barred under NRS 34.726 and subject to laches under NRS 34.800. Furthermore, Defendant has failed to allege any facts or circumstances constituting good cause for failure to previously assert these new arguments in Defendant's direct appeal or his first petition.

F. The Admission of Victim Impact Evidence.

This claim was previously raised in Defendant's Direct Appeal. II AA 466-470. This Court held that the district court had not abused its discretion. <u>Castillo</u>, at 280, 956 P.2d at 110. Since Defendant's claim has previously been rejected by this Court, it is precluded from consideration based on the doctrine of law of the case. Moreover, Defendant cannot avoid application of the doctrine of law of the case simply because he now provides a more detailed and precisely focused argument subsequently made after reflection upon the previous proceedings. <u>Hall</u>, 91 Nev. at 316, 535 P.2d at 799.

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